


 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, December 11, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 
Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 
 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM / PLEDGE OF 
ALLEGIANCE 
A1. Annual Organizational Meeting:   Election of Officers of the Board 
A2. Commencement of Regular Monthly Meeting-Newly Elected President  

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 
set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 
finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 
was continued from an earlier  meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 
earlier meeting. 

 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District. Please note 
that, for comments made on items  not appearing on the current agenda, the Board may take no action as to the comment at the current 
meeting (Gov’t Code 54954.3[a]), and the Board is allowed only a brief response to the speaker’s comment. For the record, please state 
your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board Chair or the recording secretary.  The 
Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 
D. CONSENT ITEMS 
 D1. Approval of October 2019 Financial Statements ............................................................. 2 
 D2. Minutes of November 6, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting .......................................... 21 
 D4. Minutes of November 11, 2019 Special Board Meeting ................................................. 27 
 D3. Minutes of November 13, 2019 Regular Board Meeting ................................................ 29 
 E2. Minutes of November 20, Strategic Planning Committee Meeting ................................. 35 
 
E. REPORTS 

E1. Finance Committee – Directors Jeffries and Mroz 
E2. Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee – Directors Schwartz-Frates and Mroz 
E3. Facilities Committee – Directors Leach and Mroz 
E4. Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Salmon and Jeffries 
E5. Executive Director – Rachel Mason .............................................................................. 38 
E6. General Counsel – Jeffrey Scott ................................................................................... 41 
 

 
F. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

F1. Presentation of Collaborative Proposal for Wellness Center – Catalyst & Taylor  
 Design .......................................................................................................................... 48 
F2. Review Board Self-Assessment - Online ....................................................................... 49 

 F3. Review Executive Director Assessment - Online ........................................................... 53 



 

 

G. ACTION ITEMS 
G1. Approval of Rock Rose School for Creative Learning Lease – Request for Month to Month 
 Lease Extension – Amendment No. 1 ........................................................................... 58 

Recommendation  That the board approve the revised agreement (with no end date 
included) with the understanding the District needs supersede the month-to-month 
agreement. 

G2. Approval of Approval of Lyft Pilot Program and Draft Application .................................. 61 
 Recommendation from Strategic Planning:  That the board approve this pilot program. 
G3. Election to Special Districts Advisory Committee – San Diego Local Agency Formation 

Commission .................................................................................................................. 68 
New Item  Review and select eight nominees for Special Districts Advisory Committee, 
authorize President to cast vote for District before January 6, 2020. 

G4. Review Annual Audit for the Year Ended 2019 ............................................................. 89 
  Recommendation from Finance  That the board approve the annual audit. 

G5. Approval of Cybergrants as Vendor for Processing Community Health Contract Grant 
Applications and Impact Reports................................................................................. 123 
Recommendation from Finance  That the board approve contracting with Cybergrants for 
grantees and obtaining grants. 

 
H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 
  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• No meeting in December of the Community Collaborative for Health & 
Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 

• Strategic Planning Committee meeting – Wednesday, December 18, 
5:00pm, FRHD Administrative Office, Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd. 

• Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee meeting – Quarterly TBD 
• Christmas Eve and Christmas Day/District Holidays – Office closed 
• New Year’s Day/District Holiday – Office closed 
• Finance Committee meeting – 1st Wednesday, January 2, 6:00pm, FRHD 

Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 
• Woman of Wellness – 1st Thursday, January 2, 6:00 – 7:30pm, Fallbrook 

Library 
• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) – 

January 15, 9:30am, FRHD Administrative Office, Community Room, 138 S. 
Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Board Workshop TBD 
 FRHD Administrative Office, Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 
• ACHD's 2020 Leadership Academy – February 20-21, Sacramento. 

H2. Next Regular Board meeting – 2nd Wednesday, January 8, 6:00pm, FRHD 
Administrative Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: I certify that on Friday, December 6, 2019 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place 
of the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. 
The American with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from 
participation in, or denied the benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the District office 24 hours prior to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 
 

           Board Secretary/Clerk 



Page 1 of 123



Page 2 of 123



Page 3 of 123



Page 4 of 123



Page 5 of 123



Page 6 of 123



Page 7 of 123



Page 8 of 123



Page 9 of 123



Page 10 of 123



Page 11 of 123



Page 12 of 123



Report 5

Page 13 of 123



Report 6
Page 14 of 123



Page 15 of 123



Page 16 of 123



Page 17 of 123



Report 9

Page 18 of 123



Report 9

Page 19 of 123



Page 20 of 123



Page 21 of 123



Page 22 of 123



Page 23 of 123



Page 24 of 123



Page 25 of 123



Page 26 of 123



Page 27 of 123



Page 28 of 123



Page 29 of 123



Page 30 of 123



Page 31 of 123



Page 32 of 123



Page 33 of 123



Page 34 of 123



Page 35 of 123



Page 36 of 123



Page 37 of 123



Page 38 of 123



Page 39 of 123



Page 40 of 123



Page 41 of 123



Page 42 of 123



Page 43 of 123



Page 44 of 123



Page 45 of 123



Page 46 of 123



Page 47 of 123



Page 48 of 123



Page 49 of 123



Page 50 of 123



Page 51 of 123



Page 52 of 123



Page 53 of 123



Page 54 of 123



Page 55 of 123



Page 56 of 123



Page 57 of 123



Page 58 of 123



Page 59 of 123



Page 60 of 123



Page 61 of 123



Page 62 of 123



Page 63 of 123



Page 64 of 123



Page 65 of 123



Page 66 of 123



Page 67 of 123



Page 68 of 123



Page 69 of 123



Page 70 of 123



Page 71 of 123



Page 72 of 123



Page 73 of 123



Page 74 of 123



Page 75 of 123



Page 76 of 123



Page 77 of 123



Page 78 of 123



Page 79 of 123



Page 80 of 123



Page 81 of 123



Page 82 of 123



Page 83 of 123



Page 84 of 123



Page 85 of 123



Page 86 of 123



Page 87 of 123



Page 88 of 123



Page 89 of 123



FALLBROOK REGIONAL  

HEALTH DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Page 90 of 123



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Table of Contents 

        Page 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................. 1 

Required communication .......................................................................................................... 2-6 

Page 91 of 123



Board of Directors of the 

Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Fallbrook, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Fallbrook Regional Health 

District for the year ended June 30, 2019, we considered the District’s internal control structure to 

determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

Our consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal 

control that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants.  A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of 

one or more of the internal control components does not reduce, to a relatively low level, the risk that 

errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements 

being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 

course of performing their assigned functions. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement.  We will be pleased 

to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these 

matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.  We thank the District’s staff for its 

cooperation on this audit. 

Fechter & Company  

Certified Public Accountants 

October 25, 2019 

Sacramento, CA 

Page 92 of 123



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

The Auditor’s Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 4, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional 

standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute assurance that the 

financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, 

but not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, 

there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us. 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 

reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 

the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District financial statements are free of 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 

on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 

with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  In 

accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 

appropriateness of accounting policies and their application.  The significant accounting policies used 

by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting policies were 

adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no 

transactions entered into by the District during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of 

which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is 

a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Internal Control Related Matters 

In any smaller entity, whether private enterprise or a governmental agency, the lack of segregation of 

duties can present potential issues in regards to the perpetuation and concealment of fraud.  Even 

with a perfect segregation of duties frauds can be perpetuated and concealed.  The District can 

perform some specific control procedures to help reduce the risk of fraud, however.  Some of the 

controls would include: 

• Having someone independent of the bank reconciliation function review the bank statements on a

monthly basis.  At this District it would mean someone independent of the accounting function

reviewing the county reports and bank reconciliations.

• Examining a budget to actual report on a frequent basis.

• Comparing the financial statements on a detailed level to the prior year on a frequent basis.

• Requiring someone independent of the payroll process review payroll on a bi-weekly basis,

checking for accuracy of pay rates, paid time off recorded, etc.

Page 93 of 123



• Verifying that a second person is approving all disbursement activity and that an individual

independent of the accounting function is signing checks and asking questions about invoices

presented for payment.

• Frequently displaying “professional skepticism” when considering staff responses on District

finances.

California Government Code Section 12422.5 requires the State Controller’s office to develop 

internal control guidelines applicable to each local agency by January 1, 2015.  The intent of the 

legislation is to assist local agencies in establishing a system of internal control to safeguard assets 

and prevent and detect financial errors and fraud.  To this end, the State Controller’s Office has 

produced a draft of control guidelines for local Agencies.  As the District contemplates changes to its 

system of internal control, we advise in utilizing these guidelines when developing internal 

procedures to assist with your internal control processes. 

The State Controller’s office has defined internal controls into five components that work together in 

an integrated framework.  Their guidelines were adopted from the definitions and descriptions 

contained in Internal Control – Integrated Framework, published by the Committee of Sponsoring 

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The components are: 

• Control Environment

• Risk Assessment

• Control Activities

• Information and Communication

• Monitoring Activities

The objective of control environment is the set of standards, processes, and structures that provided 

the basis for carrying out internal control across the entity.  The governing board and management 

establish the “tone at the top” regarding the importance of internal control, including expected 

standards of conduct which then cascade down through the various levels of the organization and 

have a strong effect on the overall system of internal control. 

A District’s Risk Assessment process includes how management identifies risks (including fraud risk) 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 

District’s applicable financial reporting framework.  In addition, this would also involve areas of 

business and operational risk which could potentially affect the District’s finances on a go-forward 

basis. 

The District’s risk assessment process is an extremely important activity the board and management 

should undertake.  Every organization, public or private, faces business risks on a day to day basis.  

Identifying those risks and then acting on them in a timely manner may prevent future problems from 

becoming completely unmanageable.   

Management should consistently attempt to identify risks that exist and then present those risks to the 

board for action.  It is impossible for us to identify every potential risk that exists but either way, 

management and the board should proactively attempt to identify risks that could adversely affect the 

District’s operations. 

Page 94 of 123



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Control Activities are in reference to establishing policies and procedures that achieve management 

directives and respond to identified risks in the internal control system.  These are specific 

procedures designed to perform a secondary review of internal processes that will allow for 

segregation of duties and a management level review of processed transactions. 

Information and Communication are the District’s methods of identifying what information is 

relevant to present to management and the board to assist the District in making the correct decisions.  

It also is in reference to the District’s internal processes of gathering and summarizing that 

information. 

Monitoring involves evaluating the effectiveness of controls on an on-going basis and taking 

remedial actions when necessary when identified by the other control procedures in place.  On-going 

monitoring activities often are built into the normal recurring activities of a local government and 

include regular management and supervisory activities.   

There is no catch-all for finding all instances of fraud within any entity, whether public or private.  

One of the key factors in helping prevent fraud is to encourage ethical behavior at all levels of the 

organization, i.e., “tone at the top”.  Another key would be to note instances of abnormal behavior of 

finance or accounting staff when questioned about District financial matters.   

The District should remember that they have outside resources available in the case of fraud – they 

are able to contact District auditor, their attorney, or county auditor-controller should anyone feel 

there is a chance of fraud or abuse. 

Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 

are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 

assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 

their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting 

the financial statements were: 

• Accrual and disclosure of compensated absences

• Capital asset lives and depreciation expense

Page 95 of 123



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Audit Adjustments 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction 

of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our 

auditing procedures.  An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a 

significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process (that is, cause future financial 

statements to be materially misstated).  The following audit adjustments, in our judgment, indicate 

matters that could have a significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process: 

• Restating disposition of assets and recording depreciation expense.

• Accruing expenses recorded subsequent to fiscal year-end.

• Reversing balances recorded to equity, receivables, and expense accounts in relation

to the District’s using the General Ledger to track intra-entity cash transfers.

Other Audit Matters 

During our audit, as referenced above with regards to audit adjustments, we found that the 

District is recording adjustments to equity as part of tracking intra-entity cash transfers from the 

LAIF account to fund the ongoing Community Investment project. We found inconsistent 

accounting entries that adjusted equity, receivables, and expense account balances, which did not 

necessarily coincide with the actual cash transfer events, that needed to be reversed in order to 

bring the District’s financial statements into compliance with GAAP. We recommend that the 

District use alternative methods to track the ongoing project’s related expenditures to eliminate 

posting adjusting entries to cash and equity that pose an elevated risk of misstatement within the 

financial statements. QuickBooks can be used to assign classes to transactions in order to isolate 

and identify particular cash transfers or expenditures related to this project, or generate subledger 

reports to provide details behind the underlying entries in the general ledger.  

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 

matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or 

auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are 

pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Consultations with Other Independent Auditors 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 

involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a 

determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 

professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 

consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 

accountants. 

Page 96 of 123



Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 

auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However,  

these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 

were not a condition to our retention. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 

Page 97 of 123



Page 98 of 123



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL  

HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

WITH 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Page 99 of 123



Table of Contents 

 

   Page  

 

Independent Auditor’s Report ...................................................................................................... 1-2 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 

Required Supplementary Information ................................................................................... 3-9 

 

Financial Statements: 

 

Statement of Net Position ...................................................................................................... 10 

 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position .......................................... 11 

 

Statement of Cash Flows ....................................................................................................... 12 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements ................................................................................................ 13-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100 of 123



 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Board of Directors 

of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Fallbrook, California 

 

Report on Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Fallbrook Regional Health District    

(the District), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2019, and the related 

statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, 

and the related notes to the financial statements. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 

Page 101 of 123



To the Board of Directors 

of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Fallbrook, California 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial 

position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 9 be presented to supplement the financial 

statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 

context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 

consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 

the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, 

and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an 

opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 

with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Fechter & Company  

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

 

Sacramento, California 

October 25, 2019 

Page 102 of 123



The Fallbrook Regional Health District (District) has issued its annual financial report for the fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2019 in conformity with the format prescribed by the provisions of Government 

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34). This report, Management’s Discussion 

and Analysis, is an overview of the financial activities for the fiscal year and is an integral part of the 

accompanying Basic Financial Statements. 

 

ACCOUNTING METHOD 

 

The District’s operations are accounted for as an Enterprise Fund. Enterprise Funds are used by 

government agencies to account for operations which are financed and managed in a similar manner 

to private business enterprises, where the costs and expenses (including depreciation) of providing 

services to the public on a continuing basis are recovered primarily through user charges. The District 

receives property tax revenues. The District’s revenues and expenses are recognized on a full accrual 

basis; revenues are recognized in the period incurred.  All assets and liabilities associated with the 

activity of the enterprise are included on the Statement of Net Position. 

 

THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The District has only one fund, therefore the Basic Financial Statements do not reflect the activities of 

multiple funds. The Basic Financial Statements include the Statement of Net Position, Statement of 

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement), and Statement of Cash Flows. 

Together with this report, the Basic Financial Statements provide information about the significant 

events, assumptions, and decisions resulting in the financial performance reflected in those statements.

 . 

 

The Statement of Net Position provides information regarding the financial position of the District, 

including its capital assets and debts. 

 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) provides 

information regarding the revenues received by the District, and the expenses incurred in carrying out 

the District’s programs. The ultimate focus of the income statement is the balance of effective current 

use of funds and planning for the future, as reflected by the amount of net income generated for the 

fiscal year. 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the sources and uses of the cash which 

flowed into and out of the District as a result of its operations and financing decisions. 

 

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES & FISCAL YEAR 2019 HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Statement of Net Position 

 

The District is a government entity operating under the Local Health Care District Law.  In 1950, the 

residents of the area voted to establish the Fallbrook Healthcare District. In 2017, the District changed 

its name to the Fallbrook Regional Health District, since the building that housed the hospital, which 

closed in 2015, was sold. 

Page 103 of 123



A condensed version of the Statement of Net Position is presented in Table A below and the changes 

which occurred between Fiscal Year ended 2019 and 2018. 

TABLE A 

The $178,712 increase in Total Net Position reflects the change in net position for the 

year. Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The District’s business is comprised of two major segments: 

• Community Health Contract Program – The District administers a Community Health

Contract program, giving a portion of the District’s annual property tax revenues to non-

profit health-related programs serving residents of the Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow, and

De Luz areas of northern San Diego County.

• Community Collaboratives – Representatives of the District’s healthcare organizations and

interested community members meet to network their programs, and identify, develop, and

initiate District sponsored health related community programs and address concerns.

Additional education opportunity for guest presentations relative to health, health services

and conditions; ranging in scope from Aids and Alzheimer’s to Suicide, Drug Abuse, and

Legislative issues impacting health and well-being.

2019 2018 Change

Assets:

Cash and investments 9,327,108$    9,179,933$    147,175$       

All other assets 2,441,427      2,453,890 (12,463)          

Total Assets 11,768,535 11,633,823 134,712 

Liabilities:

Current liaibilities 44,375 71,940 (27,565)          

Long-term liabilities 13,927 30,362 (16,435)          

Total Liabilities 58,302 102,302 (44,000)          

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 2,384,799 2,118,390 266,409 

Unrestricted 9,325,434 9,413,131 (87,697)          

Total Net Position 11,710,233$  11,531,521$  178,712$       

Page 104 of 123



Table B, below, is a condensed version of the Income Statement; it summarizes the District’s revenue 

and expenses, and compares Fiscal Year 2019 results to Fiscal Year 2018. 
 

TABLE B 

 

Property taxes drive the District’s operations and are its primary source of revenues. The increase of 

$98,660 in property taxes reflects the continuing health of the real estate market and the general state 

of the economy within the District’s service area. 

 

Total non-operating income increased by $446,523 due to the increase in revenues relating to the 

interest earnings available from investments set aside by the District.  

 

The Community Health Contract allocation increased by $17,653 because the amounts requested and 

provided through the Community Health Contract process varies from year-to-year. 

 

Salaries and benefits increased by $31,604 due to a change in the position of Executive Director. 

2019 2018 Change

Revenues:

Property tax revenue 1,972,693$    1,874,033$    98,660$         

Total Revenues 1,972,693      1,874,033      98,660           

Expenses:

Community Health Contracts 932,916         865,710         (67,206)          

Blue Zone projects 15,018           80,903           65,885           

Direct care services 120,000         130,000         10,000           

Administrative services 376,465         409,055         32,590           

Salaries and benefits 373,044         341,440         (31,604)          

Management and maintenance 280,145         164,477         (115,668)        

Depreciation 52,173           8,120             (44,053)          

Total Expenses 2,149,761      1,999,705      (150,056)        

Operating (Loss) (177,068)        (125,672)        248,716         

Non-Operating Income (Expenses):

Other income 368,965         85,200           283,765         

Other expenses (13,185)          (175,943)        162,758         

Total Non-Operating Income 355,780         (90,743)          446,523         

Change in Net Position 178,712$       (216,415)$      395,127$       

Page 105 of 123



Administrative services reflect an overall decrease of $32,590.  There was an increase in expenses for 

general counsel in the amount of $40,994 due to the following:  HR issues pertaining to the change in 

Executive Director position; medical records retention and responses; a RFP for the Elder Street 

sidewalk project contractor; a RFP for a consultant for the Major Use Permit for the Mission Road 

property; and a RFP for a consultant for the roofing specifications on all three properties. In addition, 

there were consultant fees for remapping the District, in preparation for going to zone-based elections.  

Independent contract services increased by $12,225, due to added interim director wages required from 

January through May, and by $28,273 due to the addition of temporary staffing to accommodate the 

planning and events at the Mission Road property.  Consulting fees decreased by $28,247, due to a 

pivot in the District’s outreach and communication services. Participation by Board members for 

District-sponsored events, meetings, conferences, and webinars increased by $3,200. Information 

technology and web services decreased by $5,348. Office expense increased by $2,208, largely due to 

the groundbreaking event at the Mission Road property. 

 

Direct Care Services were supplemented monthly, in accordance with an extended Memorandum of 

Understanding (M.O.U.), to provide economic support for urgent care services in the amount of 

$10,000 per month, which was a $10,000 decrease from last fiscal year. 

 

Direct Care Services, a Memorandum of Understanding (M.O.U.) to provide economic support for 

urgent care services in the amount of $10,000 per month, increased by $20,000 from last fiscal year. 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

At June 30, 2019, the District had $2,464,817 in capital assets and $80,018 accumulated depreciation 

resulting in $2,384,799 net capital assets 

 

A summary of the activity and balances in capital assets is presented in Table C below: 

 

TABLE C 

 

 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions Reclassifications June 30, 2019

Capital assets, not depreciated:

Land -               -               -               644,477$           644,477        

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 2,092,659$  21,140$       -$             (353,237)$          1,760,562$   

Equipment 53,576         6,202           -               -                     59,778          

Subtotal 2,146,235    27,342         -               (353,237)            1,820,340     

Accumulated depreciation (27,845)        (52,173)        -               -                     (80,018)         

Capital assets, net 2,118,390$  (24,831)$      -$             291,240$           2,384,799$   

Page 106 of 123



ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

 

The Fiscal Year 2018/2019 budget reflects an 5-6% increase in revenues, as property values/taxes have 

increased.  Interest income grew substantially due to market increases.  Capital expenditures are 

expected to increase in the coming fiscal year, due to renovations and improvements to all three 

properties.  The Community Investment Fund will be used to complete such renovations and 

improvements. 

 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACT PROGRAMS 2018-2019 

 

The Community Health Contracts (CHC) undertaken each year by the District are open for nonprofit 

501(c)(3) agencies. Those who are awarded CHCs must meet strict criteria and provide both 

comprehensive financial and service reports quarterly that demonstrate measurable outcomes. 

 

The District’s focus: Prevention, Education, Treatment, and Ancillary Services 

 

• Amount requested:  $1,442,947.43  

• Amount funded:  $910,415.97  

• Twenty Community Health Contracts 

awarded: 

 

• 6 Youth programs  

• 5 Seniors  

• 9 All ages  

 

YOUTH 

 

• Boys and Girls Club, Summer Water Safety Program- $9,240.00: Aims to inspire and 

enable youth members, from ages 5 to 18, on how to be safe around water and realize their full 

potential as productive, caring and responsible citizens. 

• Boys and Girls Club, Triple Play-$36,750.00: Allows youths ages 5 to 14 to learn skills such 

as living a full productive life in good health, engaging in positive social behaviors, to forming 

good habits and setting goals throughout their lives. 

• Fallbrook Citizens Crime Prevention Committee, GANAS Mentoring Program-

$10,500.00: Provides a comprehensive approach to crime awareness, prevention, and 

reduction. It provides health education and career development information, promotes daily 

physical activity, and helps mentees develop an interest in taking responsibility for one’s 

community. This program targets youth ages 9 to 17 that live in high crime and economically 

challenged neighborhoods. 

•  Fallbrook Union High School District, Fallbrook High School Wellness Center-

$20,000.00: The goal of this project is to link student health and learning, and desires to provide 

a comprehensive program promoting healthy eating and physical activity for district students. 

Page 107 of 123



• Mental Health Systems, Fallbrook Youth Advocacy Coalition-$9,711.45: This program 

improves the lives of individuals, families, and communities impacted by substance abuse and 

behavioral health disorders and serves the youth mostly 12-25 years of age. 

 

 

SENIORS 

 

• Foundation for Senior Care, Senior Care Advocacy Program - $62,830.16: Provides 

programs and resources enabling seniors to enhance their well-being and safely age at home. 

• Foundation for Senior Care, Senior Transportation Services - $72,169.65: Provides 

accessible, inexpensive reliable transportation that allows their clients to determine when to 

make their medical appointments and other basic needs at minimal costs and no delays. Helps 

their riders stay active, independent, and in control of their lives. 

• Foundation for Senior Care, Door-Through-Door, Hospital to Home - $53,464.64: 

Provides seniors and disabled adults ranging from ages 27 to 105, a bridge of care when they 

experience a hospitalization or stay at a skilled nursing facility and then discharged home to 

recover.  

• Foundation for Senior Care, Respite Support at the Adult Day Care - $31,062.57: The 

Fallbrook Day Care Center, “The Club”, provides resources for seniors and the disabled, ages 

ranging from 27 to 105, to have an enriched life, provides socialization, and allows for respite 

support for those caregivers who work so hard caring for their family members. 

• Fallbrook Senior Center Service Club, Inc., Home Delivered Meals Program - $78,750: 

This program brings awareness of the importance of a healthy diet and delivers food to seniors 

in our District. 

 

ALL AGES 

 

• Community Health Systems, Inc., Integrated Women’s Health - $105,000.00: Provides 

health screenings, comprehensive perinatal health, and integrated primary care services along 

with oral health and behavioral health services to underserved women ages 18-64 in a dignified 

setting.  

• Fallbrook Food Pantry, Preventing Hunger in the Greater Fallbrook Area - $125,600.00: 

Provides an adequate and nutritious supply of food to any individuals in the community who 

are in need. 

• Fallbrook Land Conservancy, Expanding Community Wellness Walking Resource - 

$10,000.00: This program allows the Land Conservancy to preserve and enhance the rural 

character and natural beauty of our area through the permanent protection of open space and 

related activities, for all ages. 

• Fallbrook Smiles Project, Fallbrook Smiles Project - $75,075.00: The Fallbrook Smiles 

Program was created to improve the communities of Fallbrook, Rainbow, and Bonsall by 

helping the residents of all ages and genders achieve optimal physical health through dental 

and medical screenings. 

• Healthy Adventures, Fallbrook Community Wellness - $9,450.00: Provides family-friendly 

wellness workshops on exercise, gardening, cooking and living a healthy lifestyle. It will 

expand and provide CPR/First-Aid classes and health screenings with follow-up coaching. 

Page 108 of 123



• Jeremiah’s Ranch, Jeremiah’s Ranch Support Group - $15,487.50: This program provides 

an opportunity to share information, support, and resources to family members, care providers, 

and extended family members of individuals with developmental disabilities, in a monthly 

meeting. 

• Michelle’s Place Breast Cancer Resource Center, Breast Health Assistance - $25,200.00: 

This program provides breast health resources, education, navigation, financial assistance, 

transportation, and support to underinsured and underserved women and their families dealing 

with breast cancer. 

• Palomar Family Counseling Service, Inc., Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds - $82,950.00: 

This program will address health disparities of childhood obesity and behavioral health through 

prevention and treatment: parent workshops, presentations on healthy lifestyles, individual 

counseling, and counseling services and parenting classes at the Wellness Center. 

• REINS Therapeutic Horsemanship Program, Behavioral Health & Wellness Therapy 

Program - $68,250.00: Provides advanced physical, mental, and emotional therapy by 

specialized, highly educated therapists. The students usually ride almost 3 miles on the Equine 

Therapists. 

 

During the fiscal year 2018-2019, the District received a total of $1,472,947.43 in Community Health 

Contract requests. The Board of Directors approved distribution of $910,415.97 to qualified applicants, 

plus $25,000 to North County Fire, as the 4th installment of a $100,000 grant agreement, for a total of 

$935,415.97. This brings the total amount granted by the District since June 1999 to $9,756,690.64. 

 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health District 

138 South Brandon Road 

Fallbrook, CA 92028 

(760) 731-9187 Office 

(760) 731-9131 Fax 

Email:  bookkeeper@fallbrookhealth.org 

Website:  www.fallbrookhealth.org 

Page 109 of 123

http://www/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 110 of 123



Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,330,463$       

Investments 6,996,645         

Taxes receivable 21,137              

Interest receivable 8,925                

Prepaid expenses 26,566              

Total current assets 9,383,736         

Non-current assets:

Assets held for resale (Note 10) -                    

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,384,799         

Total non-current assets 2,384,799         

TOTAL ASSETS 11,768,535$     

Current liabilities:

Accrued liabilities 44,375$            

Total current liabilities 44,375              

Compensated absences 13,927              

Total liabilities 58,302              

Net Position 

Invested in capital assets, net 2,384,799         

Unrestricted 9,325,434         

Total net position 11,710,233       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 11,768,535$     

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10

Page 111 of 123



Operating revenues:
Property taxes 1,972,693$    

Total operating revenues 1,972,693      

Operating expenses:
Community healthcare programs 932,916         
Blue Zone projects 15,018           
Direct care services 120,000         
Administrative services 376,466         
Salaries and benefits 373,044         
Management and maintenance 280,144         
Depreciation 52,173           

Total operating expenses 2,149,761      

Operating income (loss) (177,068)       

Non-operating revenues and (expenses):
Interest and investment income 311,365         
Lease income 57,600           
Other expenses (13,185)         

Total non-operating revenues and (expenses) 355,780         

Change in net position 178,712         

Beginning net position 11,531,521    

Ending net position 11,710,233$  

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11

Page 112 of 123



Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from County of San Diego for property taxes 1,968,723$      

Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (825,620)         

Cash payments to employees for services (389,479)         

Cash payments to grantees for programs (932,916)         

Net cash (used in) operating activities (179,292)         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from lease of property 57,600             

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 57,600             

Cash flows from investing activities:

Fixed asset additions (27,186)           

Other capital outlay activity (13,185)           

Interest revenue 33,245             

Net cash (used in) investing activities (7,126)             

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (128,818)         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,459,437        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,330,619$      

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by (used) by operating activities:

Operating (loss) (177,068)$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net

cash (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 52,173             

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Tax receivable (3,970)             

Reimbursement receivable -                  

Prepaid items and deposits (6,427)             

Accrued liabilities (27,565)           

Compensated absence (16,435)           

Net cash (used) by operating activities (179,292)$       

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12

Page 113 of 123



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 114 of 123



Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

The financial statements of the Fallbrook Regional Health District (the District) have been 

prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America (U.S. GAAP) as it applies to government units. The Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 

governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the 

District’s accounting policies are described below. 

 

A. Reporting Entity 

 

The District, formerly known as the Fallbrook Hospital District, is organized under the 

provisions of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California to provide and operate 

health care facilities in Fallbrook, California, an unincorporated area within the County 

of San Diego, California (County). 

 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

 

The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. 

 

The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for Deferred Outflows of 

Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources, where applicable. 

 

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net 

position) that apply to future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an 

expense until that time. 

 

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) 

that apply to future periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as revenue until that 

time. 

 

These financial statements are accounted for using the “economic resources” 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the District’s 

assets and liabilities, including capital assets, are included in the accompanying 

Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position presents the change in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 

revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are 

recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 

(expenses) in total net position.  Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated 

from property tax only. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. 

Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the 

District. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

 

Page 115 of 123



Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 

C. Investments 

 

Investment Valuation 

 

Highly liquid investments with maturities of one year or less at the time of purchase are 

stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is 

used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

 

State Investment Pool 

 

The District participates in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), an investment 

pool managed by the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool funds 

in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These Structured Notes and Asset-

Backed Securities are subject to market risk as a result of changes in interest rates. LAIF’s 

investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of 

California collateralizing these investments. 

 

CalTrust Investment 

 

The District also participates in CalTrust, which is a pool of diversified marketable 

bonds; including federal, federal agency, corporate, and California municipal bonds. The 

bonds are pooled in a Medium-Term account and the pool is managed by Nottingham 

Investment Administration. CalTrust investments are subject to market risk as a result of 

changes in interest rates. 

 

D. Property Taxes 

 

Property taxes are levied on March 1 and are payable in two installments: November 1 

and February 1 of each year. Property taxes become delinquent on December 10 and 

April 10, for the first and second installments, respectively. The lien date is March 1. The 

County of San Diego, California (County) bills and collects property taxes and remits 

them to the District according to a payment schedule established by the County. 

 

The County is permitted by State law to levy on properties at 1% of full market value (at 

time of purchase) and can increase the property tax rate at no more than 2% per year. The 

District receives a share of this basic tax levy proportionate to what it received during 

the years 1976-1978. 

 

Property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied. No 

allowance for doubtful accounts was considered necessary. 

 

 

 

Page 116 of 123



Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 

F. Capital Assets 

 

The District’s capital assets are stated at the lower of cost or fair market value. 

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the 

straight-line method, generally 3-10 years. The capitalization threshold is $500. 

 

G. Compensated Absences 

 

It is the District’s policy to permit contract employees to accumulate earned but unused 

vacation leave time. Noncontract employees may accumulate earned but unused 

vacation leave time up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. All employees may accrue 

unused sick leave time up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. Upon termination, all 

employees are entitled to a lump sum payment of 25% of accrued sick leave, not to 

exceed fifteen (15) days. At June 30, 2019, compensated absences balance was $13,927. 

 

H. Net Position 

 

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in the statement of net 

position and should be displayed in the following three components: 

 

Net Investment in Capital Assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net 

of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, 

notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 

improvement of those assets. 

 

Restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities 

and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 

 

Unrestricted component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 

resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 

determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net 

position. 

 

At June 30, 2019, the District had no restricted component of net position. 

 

Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position 

 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 

component of net position is available, the District’s policy is to apply restricted 

component of net position first. 

Page 117 of 123



Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 

I. Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements 

and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

Note 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2019: 

 

 
A. Cash Deposits 

 

The carrying amount of the District’s cash deposits was $964,529 as of June 30, 2019. 

Bank balances before reconciling items were $1,019,854 at that date, which were fully 

insured or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the 

District’s name as discussed below. 

 

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan 

associations to secure the District’s cash by pledging securities as collateral. This Code 

states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security 

interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash 

is considered to be held in the District’s name.  The market value of pledged securities 

must equal at least 110% of the District’s cash. California law also allows financial 

institutions to secure the District’s cash by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes 

having a value of 150% of the District’s total cash. 

 

Amount

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Bank deposits 964,529$        

Petty cash 84                   

LAIF 1,365,850       

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,330,463$     

Page 118 of 123



Note 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents - continued 

 

B. Local Agency Investment Funds  

 

The District participates in The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), a voluntary 

program for California’s local governments and special districts. Accordingly, the 

District has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, 

requiring all applicable investments to be reported at fair value as provided by the State 

Treasurer. The Local Investment Advisory Board (LIAB), consisting of five members, 

provides oversight for LAIF. Included in the LAIF’s investment portfolio are U.S. 

Treasury bills and notes, certificates of deposit, time deposits, mortgage-backed 

securities, and commercial paper.   

 

As of June 30, 2019, the District had a balance of $1,365,850 invested in LAIF. 

 

Note 3: Investments 

 

The District is generally authorized under state statutes to invest in: 

 

• Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies, and instrumentalities 

• Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at commercial banks and savings 

and loan institutions 

• Prime banker’s acceptances 

• Prime commercial paper 

• Negotiable certificates of deposit 

• Repurchase agreements 

• Money market funds 

• State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 

• Medium-term notes 

 

The following is summary of investments grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2019: 

 

 
 
 

  

Credit

Rating Amount

Investments:

CalTrust Not Rated 6,996,645       

Page 119 of 123



Note 4: Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets activities for the year ended June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

 

 
 

Depreciation expense for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $52,173. 

 

Note 5: Insurance 

 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District carries 

insurance through Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). SDRMA is a risk 

pooling joint powers authority formed under the California Government Code to provide 

insurance coverage for SDRMA’s member districts. SDRMA purchases excess insurance 

from commercial carriers to reduce its exposure to large losses. 

 

There were no instances in the past three years where a settlement exceeded the District’s 

coverage provided through SDRMA. 
 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions Reclassifications June 30, 2019

Capital assets, not depreciated:

Land -               -               -               644,477$           644,477        

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 2,092,659$  21,140$       -$             (353,237)$          1,760,562$   

Equipment 53,576         6,202           -               -                     59,778          

Subtotal 2,146,235    27,342         -               (353,237)            1,820,340     

Accumulated depreciation (27,845)        (52,173)        -               -                     (80,018)         

Capital assets, net 2,118,390$  (24,831)$      -$             291,240$           2,384,799$   

Page 120 of 123



Note 6:    Operating Lease Commitment 

 

The District is under contract for one operating lease for its copy machine, located in the 

administrative office. The minimum future equipment rental payments under this non-

cancelable, unsecured 60-month operating lease as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

 

 
 

Note 7:    Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

 

The District has a Section 408(p) defined contribution pension plan as allowed under the 

Internal Revenue Code. The plan type sponsored by the District is the Savings Incentive 

Match Plan for Employees of Small Employers (SIMPLE), which was effective on January 6, 

2006. The Plan is a defined contribution retirement plan in which the employer’s contribution 

is nondiscretionary and is based on a formula that is not related to profit. The Plan sponsor 

guarantees no benefit and bears no investment risk while the Plan participants bear all 

investment risk and have no guaranteed level of benefits. 

 

Eligible non-contract employees may begin participating in the Pension Plan following a 

one-year probationary employment period. The Administrator may begin participating the 

first day of the month following the employment date of work.  The Plan is entirely funded 

by District contributions of up to 3% of the participants’ gross pay for employees hired on or 

after March 1, 2006 who contribute up to 3% of their salary to the deferred compensation 

plan. Participants are fully vested upon joining the plan. Plan provisions and contribution 

requirements are established and may be amended by the District. Participants are eligible to 

begin receiving benefits at age 55. 

 

The District’s payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2019, 

was $0. Total employer contributions paid by the District amounted to $0. 

 

Funds paid into the Plan by the District are placed in a SIMPLE IRA account at a financial 

institution determined by the Plan participants. The financial information of the defined 

contribution pension plan is not in the accompanying financial statements. 
 

Fiscal Year Ending Minimum

June 30,  Lease Commitments

2020 8,664                         

2021 8,664                         

2022 8,664                         

2023 6,498                         

2024 -                             

Total 32,490                      

Page 121 of 123



Note 8: Subsequent Events 

 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 25, 2019, the date the financial 

statements were available to be issued, and determined that there were no events occurring 

subsequent to June 30, 2019 that would have a material impact on the results of operations 

or its financial position. 

 

Page 122 of 123



Page 123 of 123




